
 1

Minutes of the Board of Assessors 
Meeting of March 9, 2006 

 
A meeting of the Board of Assessors was held on Thursday, March 9, 2006 in Room 208 at City Hall.  The 
meeting was called to order at 4:30 PM by Chair, Marylou Blaisdell. 
 
 
Members Present 
Marylou Blaisdell, Chair  Dominic D’Antoni   Kevin Moriarty 
 
 
Assessing Staff Present 
Angelo Marino Gary Turgiss  Doug Dame  Bob Lakeman  Jeanne Dunfey  
Cheryl Walley 
 
Minutes of the Meeting: 
MOTION BY Dominic D’Antoni to accept the minutes of the meeting held February 23, 2006 
SECONDED BY Kevin Moriarty. 
MOTION CARRIED unanimously. 
 
 
Abatement Requests Presented: 
See attached printout for approvals/denials. 
 
 
Staff Items: 
Referring to the packet of data the Board members received on Rodgers Mobile Home Park, 
Commercial Appraiser Douglas Dame explained to the Board that he had thought he would be 
presenting an agreement with the owners.  For some reason, the signed agreement has not been returned, 
so he is going to have to table this until a future meeting. 
 
Referring to the inhouse corrections presented this evening, Dominic D’Antoni inquired as to the 
reasons the assessment data had not been accurate on these properties.  Chief Assessor Angelo Marino 
explained if a building permit is not filed, the Assessing Department has no idea the change has taken 
place.  The owners have come forward and notified us of these changes after checking their data online 
and inquiring about the increase in their assessment.  This has enabled us to update our data on these 
properties.  Mr. D’Antoni suggested having a notice put in the newspaper to let people know that they 
need to file permits when any demolition occurs on their property, to have their assessment accurately 
reflect what is there. 
 
Three new charitable exemptions were presented to the Board for their approval.  The properties located 
at 7-22 Autumn Leaf Drive and 5-18 Autumn Leaf Drive, which are owned by MP Housing, Inc., as this 
charitable organization has timely filed the required forms for 2006 and meets the criteria stipulated in 
RSA 72:23 to receive a charitable exemption.  After a brief discussion, the following motion was made: 
 
MOTION BY Dominic D’Antoni to approve a new charitable exemption for 7-22 Autumn Leaf Drive 
and 5-18 Autumn Leaf Drive for tax year 2006. 
SECONDED BY Kevin Moriarty. 
MOTION CARRIED unanimously. 
 



 2

Another new charitable exemption was presented to the Board for their approval.  The property located 
at 117 Amherst Street owned by Nashua Children’s Home, as this charitable organization has timely 
filed the required forms for 2006 and meets the criteria stipulated in RSA 72:23 to receive a charitable 
exemption.  After a brief discussion, the following motion was made: 
 
MOTION BY Dominic D’Antoni to approve a new charitable exemption for 117 Amherst Street for tax 
year 2006. 
SECONDED BY Kevin Moriarty. 
MOTION CARRIED unanimously. 
 
Mr. Marino informed the Board of a BTLA decision received today regarding 2004 abatements filed by 
a tax representative out of Derry, NH, Mr. Mark Lutter.  Four communities filed a motion to dismiss 
abatements due to the fact that the abatement forms were not signed by the taxpayers.  Three of these 
communities were successful, one of which was Nashua.  The City of Nashua had requested three 
abatement appeals for 2004 be dismissed due to the fact that there were no taxpayer’s signature on the 
forms.  The BTLA granted these motions and dismissed all three of Nashua’s 2004 appeals in this case.  
These denials will come before the Board of Assessors at the next meeting for their review.  An Order 
was also made that will consider what sanctions, if any, the BTLA will place on Mr. Lutter for not 
complying with the BTLA’s rules and also his “lack of diligence in preparing and presenting appeals on 
behalf of taxpayers” and the Order noted several cases as examples.    
 
Chair Marylou Blaisdell confirmed that everyone has a copy of the memorandum to the Board of 
Assessors regarding the Nashua Telegraph’s series of articles about the assessments in the City.  She 
advised she was just in the Assessing Office looking at the volume of abatements filed.  There are 
literally thousands of abatements.  It will take months, even over a year to go through them all.  With all 
the people coming in and asking questions and filing, not one complaint against customer service was 
received.  Administrative Services Director Maureen Lemieux and Mayor Bernard Streeter commented 
on the high level of customer service given by staff in the Assessing Department and Ms. Blaisdell said 
she thinks the staff should be commended.  She advised that a reporter from the Nashua Telegraph had 
called her and she returned the call but he never called her back. 
 
Mr. Marino informed the Board that another local newspaper, the Hippo, had done a follow-up that 
provided him the opportunity to comment on the misinformation reported by the Telegraph.  The Board 
has a copy of that article also.  When the Telegraph asked him to interview he felt they were sincere and 
he didn’t think it was going to be slanted.  The first two articles were fair but after that, when they relied 
on the sales price and did no appraisal and no investigation as to the sales price and how it relates to 
market value, this is where it became slanted.  The sales were not arms length transactions and he 
explained that sales price does not equal market value.  Market value is a concept and is the most 
probable price one can receive in the open market.  It is determined by more than just one sale.  
Apparently they chose to ignore that.  People who have applied for an abatement have those 
expectations.  It will take a long time to investigate and determine if they deserve an abatement.  We 
will examine each one on its merits.  We will present information to the Board, although it may not be as 
detailed as it has been in the past.  Ms. Blaisdell said the Board will need to discuss it and see if we are 
in agreement that it is a valid vote.  Mr. Marino said he is trying to put together an automatic valuation 
module to see if we can quickly determine if our assessment is good.  If it shows that it is not, we will 
keep investigating to see if there should be an adjustment.  We will never get all of them before you by 
July 1, however.  Mr. D’Antoni asked if those that are not processed by July 1 will be automatically 
deemed denied and Mr. Marino confirmed.  Ms. Blaisdell said that people need to be made aware of that 
so she thinks it would be to the Board’s advantage to have a meeting with the Editor of the Telegraph to 
prepare them that there will be a lot of denials. 
 



 3

Mr. D’Antoni commented on the report that Bob Lakeman put together addressing the sales of 
overassessed properties as determined by the Telegraph.  He noted that 14 were properly assessed.  One 
or 5% that had refused entry, three needed field reviews, two or 10% that needed interior inspections, 
seven or 35% were unqualified sales.  So, as I saw it, the current assessment of real properties is not as 
severe a problem as the recent articles would have you think.  Mr. D’Antoni continued by saying the 
assessing data certainly needs to be updated.  Mr. Marino noted that we have asked but were not 
successful.   
 
Referring to a newspaper article concerning an individual being taxed for property in Massachusetts, Mr. 
Marino said we know that some of this property is in Massachusetts and we know the state line goes 
through his house and we have already made an adjustment and said one-third of it is in Massachusetts 
and we are not taxing it, but again the Telegraph did not ask us, they took an inflammatory situation and 
fanned the fire and spoke half-truths in the articles.   
 
Commercial Appraiser Robert Lakeman said he has one comment on these articles.  The second article 
which was in Monday’s paper had a negative tone.  He resented the tone in some of these.  You have the 
pathetic guy sitting on the floor of his house and “How to Fight City Hall”.  The article is implying it is 
a fight or a battle, when in fact we have gone out of our way to make sure that property owners are 
treated fairly.  To imply that it is always a fight is misleading.  Mr. D’Antoni noted that evidently the 
Assessing staff did not take this personally because you can’t deal with people that are irate if you take it 
personally, so you all deserve a pat on the back.  He said what got to him was how they looked at the 
sales and the assessments and said you are overassessed.  It was misleading.  Mr. Lakeman commented 
that this is true, but more so if the sale price is not even indicative of fair market value.  Mr. Marino said 
if we were basing everyone’s tax bill on what they purchased the property for, we wouldn’t be able to be 
fair, so that is why we do not use the sale price to determine the assessment.  Mr. D’Antoni said 
someone sees Coefficent of Dispersion 8.6%. They don’t understand how good a figure that is.  Mr. 
Marino noted that the DRA says if you are above 20 the DRA may petition the BTLA to recommend 
your community do a revaluation. 
 
Kevin Moriarty noted that the last time we updated our data was 1991 and we have had 5 updates of the 
assessments since then.  He asked if we are in compliance with State statutes.  Mr. Marino said the 
statute reads that “once in each five year period you will have a value anew” and 2005 was our 
Assessment Review Year.  He noted that it doesn’t say “reval”, it says “value anew”.  He said that all of 
our performance statistics are excellent.  Of the thirty or so properties that the DRA randomly selected to 
check the data on, only one had errors which amounted to a difference of 4-5% in the assessment.  The 
reason for that is because we had not inspected it in awhile.  They have also examined our exemption 
process and they said that is fine as well.  Mr. D’Antoni asked if the report is public.  Mr. Marino 
advised that it is a public document and it will be filed sometime after May, 2006. 
 
Mr. Moriarty noted that it has been 15 years since the City has done a reval or a complete update of data.  
He asked is it time another one was done?  He said we need to recommend this for funding.  Ms. 
Blaisdell pointed out that in 2003 the cost would have been $1.5 M and there was a committee that was 
formed to look into it and they had three proposals and they narrowed it down to one vendor.  The 
Mayor, we thought, was on board and then he declined.   Now the cost is up to $2 M.   Mr. Marino said 
we could do more data verification and that is why we asked for more staff.  We did buy the software 
and that has given us some more tools.  We need more time to use the tools and become familiar with 
the capabilities and we also need more staff.  Ms. Blaisdell asked if this money has been requested in the 
2007 budget for the Assessing Department.  Mr. Marino replied no and explained that it was not there 
last year because it was removed.  He explained to the Board that he simply prepares and forwards his 
recommendation for a budget to Ms. Lemieux and Ms. Lemieux then approves or denies his 
recommendations.  That was the first item to go.  He said he can’t do anything because he is staff.  Ms. 



 4

Blaisdell asked if the Board can have a letter sent to the Board of Aldermen saying that the Board of 
Assessors has requested data verification personnel and this is essential to getting assessing records 
updated.  Mr. Marino said he can attempt this and he can notify the Board of Assessors of the date of the 
budget hearing.  Ms. Blaisdell said she would like that but she would also like it to be on record that the 
Board of Assessors has asked for the data verification personnel.  Mr. Marino complied and suggested 
he draft a letter for the Board reflecting this.  Ms. Blaisdell said she would like that. 
 
 
Old Business:  
 
Ms. Blaisdell referred to the memo received by the Board from City Counsel regarding the tax status of 
the Board of Aldermen and asked the members to review it and it will be discussed at the next meeting. 
  
MOTION BY Dominic D’Antoni at 5:15 PM to adjourn. 
SECONDED BY Kevin Moriarty. 
MOTION CARRIED unanimously.                   
 
 
 
 
 

Transcribed by  
Cheryl Walley 

Department Coordinator 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJDFFile false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName (http://www.color.org)
  /PDFXTrapped /Unknown

  /Description <<
    /FRA <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create PDF documents with higher image resolution for improved printing quality. The PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Reader 5.0 and later.)
    /JPN <FEFF3053306e8a2d5b9a306f30019ad889e350cf5ea6753b50cf3092542b308000200050004400460020658766f830924f5c62103059308b3068304d306b4f7f75283057307e30593002537052376642306e753b8cea3092670059279650306b4fdd306430533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103057305f00200050004400460020658766f8306f0020004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d30678868793a3067304d307e30593002>
    /DEU <>
    /PTB <>
    /DAN <>
    /NLD <>
    /ESP <>
    /SUO <>
    /ITA <>
    /NOR <>
    /SVE <>
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


